TOWN OF
NEW LONDON, NEW HAMPSHIRE

375 MAIN STREET ® NEW LONDON, NH 03257 ® NEWLONDON.NH.GOV

Planning Board
MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, July 22, 2025

Whipple Town Hall

MEMBERS PRESENT:  Tim Paradis (Chair), Janet Kidder (Selectboard Representative), Emily Campbell
Paul Vance, Charlene Baxter, Joe Kubit, Paul Gorman, Erin Maloney

STAFF PRESENT: Adam Ricker (Town Planner/Zoning Administrator)

OTHERS PRESENT: Jason Hill (Project Manager, TFMoran), Bob Bowers (Resident)

1. Call to Order: Chair Paradis called the meeting to order at
2. Governance and Procedures

Chair Paradis opened the meeting and advised that a few members were slightly delayed, but on their
way. He reminded all present that the meeting was being recorded and would be shared for the public to
view.

3. NH Bills

Mr. Ricker has reviewed the newest planning and zoning laws that have been signed into law. He
advised that the NH Municipal Association has also provided a review of the laws and he will provide
more information at the next meeting. He highlighted that they cannot use a Conditional Use Permit for
Accessory Dwelling Units, so that process will need to be changed.

Mr. Gorman asked if what is on the books stands. Mr. Ricker advised it does not, as some of these laws
were effective July 1, 2025. He outlined that he is working to determine how to proceed with this mid-
year adoption.

Mr. Ricker continued adding that other items that need to be addressed include parking regulations and
dwelling capacity. There are a large batch of laws that need to be addressed before Town Meeting, so
more information will be forthcoming. Ms. Campbell asked if there would be any workshops for
Planning and Zoning Board members to help them better understand the changes. Mr. Ricker advised
they do not have any at this time, but there will be workshops in the Spring; however, there may be a
Fall workshop and he will pass that date along if it is scheduled. He added that the NHMA also hosts
lunchtime virtual trainings for those who are interested. He shared the website with the board.

Mr. Gorman asked if this effective date has nullified the current ordinances. Mr. Ricker confirmed and
added that he is working to determine to what extent.



4. Public Hearing: Conceptual Site Plan Review

Applicant:  Bar Harbor Bank & Trust

Address: 331 Main Street

Parcel ID: 084-088-0-0-0

Zone(s): Commercial

Summary: The property owner would like to discuss the demolition of the current building
and the reconstruction of a smaller building with onsite parking and associated
improvements.

Jason Hill, Project Manager at TFMoran, presented plans to demolish the existing 4,500 sq.ft. building
and construct a smaller ranch-style building on the 0.25-acre lot. He shared visuals of the proposed
design, explained a stormwater catchment system to reduce runoff, reviewed the site plan, and noted two
potential required waivers.

Mr. Ricker inquired whether this would be an appropriate time to engage the NH Department of
Transportation regarding intersection safety and parking along Main Street in front of the bank. He
noted that parking was previously angled but was changed to parallel parking, raising concerns about
pedestrian safety as vehicles use the extra paved space to bypass cars waiting to turn. Mr. Hill responded
that one parking space on Pleasant Street will be lost to create separation between the two Pleasant
Street driveways.

Mr. Ricker further commented that the intersection is among the town’s most prominent and asked if the
property owners would consider a mixed-use building to better align with Main Street’s character. While
acknowledging this cannot be required, he emphasized the community’s desire to preserve Main Street’s
rural New England charm. Chair Paradis agreed, highlighting the importance of the intersection to the
town and noting that maintaining its historic character would ease community acceptance of the change.
He added that a two-story mixed-use building would better match the scale of neighboring structures.

Mr. Kubit asked if this project would coincide with the Strawberry Blossom Montessori School
construction. Mr. Hill responded that the school plans to break ground soon with a 2026 opening, but
since this project is not yet approved, construction is unlikely to start this year.

Mr. Vance expressed concerns about vehicle and pedestrian traffic, particularly regarding the proposed
tree at the Pleasant and Main Street corner shown in the plans. Mr. Hill noted the new building will be
set back about 6 feet from Main Street and 10 feet from Pleasant Street. Mr. Vance expressed his
agreement with Mr. Ricker and Chair Paradis, stating the parcel is well-positioned for potential second-
story commercial or residential use.

Ms. Kidder noted the town’s need for housing and suggested the bank consider adding second-floor
apartments. She also recommended removing the Main Street parking space closest to Pleasant Street.
Mr. Hill questioned how this could be implemented given the current complications in the water system.
Mr. Ricker said if the bank wanted to explore the possibilities, that is a discussion that needs to happen
upfront with the water precinct and that they can advise best on the feasibility.

Planning Board Page 2 of 5
Minutes of July 22, 2025



Mr. Ricker suggested adjusting parking to align with the spaces in front of the New London Inn, which
could help address some of the safety concerns of the Pleasant and Main Street intersection. Chair
Paradis added that this could also help slow traffic in the area.

Ms. Maloney expressed interest in adding bump-outs to slow traffic, moving the Pleasant Street stop bar
closer to Main Street, and enhancing the area’s overall appearance. Mr. Ricker noted that he and Public
Works Director Clarke have been discussing these ideas, along with seasonal planters, to improve
safety.

Ms. Maloney asked whether the proposed island separating the driveway entrance and exit would create
snow removal issues, and if the plans would impact the Pleasant Street sidewalk. She also observed that
the driveway appears to be about 30 feet closer to Main Street, which could create intersection
challenges, and asked about town driveway proximity requirements. Mr. Ricker advised that Public
Works Director Clarke has not yet reviewed the plans, as they are still in the conceptual phase.

Mr. Vance asked if the project would increase curb cuts on Pleasant Street before Gould Road. Mr.
Ricker confirmed the number would increase from two to three.

Ms. Baxter suggested relocating the ATM to another side of the building to reduce congestion in the
Main Street parking space. Mr. Hill said this could be explored and discussed with the Bar Harbor’s
team. Ms. Baxter also asked about the location of the safety deposit box; Mr. Hill confirmed it would
remain but be moved to the back corner near the Strawberry Blossom Montessori School.

Mr. Ricker raised concerns about parking access for 22 Pleasant Street (abutting lot), noting the long
history of shared access and the need to consider that property’s access. Mr. Hill said the proposed
driveway for this parcel would be about 18 feet wide and would cross onto the bank’s property. He
asked whether this topic would be considered a town or civil matter; Mr. Ricker replied it was a private
matter, though the board could express concerns about vehicle maneuverability for the adjacent lot and
would be in a difficult position to potential approve one site plan that could render the parking spaces of
an adjacent property useless. Mr. Hill said he would relay the concern to the TFMoran and Bar Harbor
teams.

Mr. Vance asked about moving the building closer to Main Street, particularly if the sidewalk were
adjusted to align with other Main Street parking. Mr. Ricker supported the idea, and Chair Paradis
agreed, noting the street’s existing character features buildings close to the sidewalk.

Chair Paradis recognized Mr. Bob Bowers for public comment. Mr. Bowers expressed concern about the
Pleasant Street sidewalk and suggested the Planning Board and property owners (Bar Harbor Bank)
consider an easement to allow Public Works to widen this portion of the sidewalk to a full five feet. Mr.
Ricker noted the sidewalk is currently five feet wide, but Mr. Bowers said an easement could still help
with snow removal. Mr. Hill said that he relay this idea to the TFMoran and Bar Harbor teams.

Ms. Kidder expressed her concerns about the parking access for 22 Pleasant Street (abutting lot), noting
the board could not approve a plan that would render them unusable.

Planning Board Page 3 of 5
Minutes of July 22, 2025



Chair Paradis reiterated the importance of considering a two-story design to maintain Main Street’s
character.

3. Capital Improvement Program

Mr. Ricker advised the board to begin preparing for the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) process.
He noted that the new software, launched during last year’s process, will be used for the full cycle this
year. The Facilities Study will be included in this year’s review, and the board will need to address how
to incorporate projects with 30-year timelines into a plan that covers only the next 10 years. He and
Public Works Director Clarke are reviewing the plan to help prioritize town needs for the board’s
consideration.

Mr. Ricker suggested the board consider hosting a “jamboree” similar to the Board of Selectmen’s, with
two or three sessions to break the process into manageable parts. Mr. Vance expressed interest hosting a
meeting to help everyone better understanding the overall process, and finalized document. Mr. Ricker
agreed, noting there is often a misconception that the document is a fixed plan when it is actually an
advisory document for planning purposes.

Ms. Kidder noted that some projects, such as a new police station, are difficult to estimate in advance,
but she supports funding proposed outlays early to reduce tax impacts when projects begin. Mr. Vance
added that the board should discuss with department heads how long certain projects can be delayed.
Mr. Ricker responded that department heads assess this individually before presenting their requests to
the CIP subcommittees. However, when they submit their spreadsheets they are unaware of the outlays
for other departments, so this could lead to a large single expenditure in the same year in some instances.
He added that this is something that could certainly be addressed and explored more.

Mr. Ricker noted that department head change requests may be communicated verbally, as it is unclear
if the software will highlight these changes for the subcommittees. He explained that under state RSA,
the Planning Board is responsible for completing the CIP unless Town Meeting designates a separate
official CIP Committee. In New London, the process is a hybrid, with the Planning Board forming a
subcommittee which allows for the Selectboard and Budget Committee to have representation as non-
voting participants. The Planning Board as a whole ultimately adopts the plan and forwards the finalized
document to the Selectboard for consideration.

Mr. Ricker added that the subcommittee still needs one volunteer. With no immediate interest, board
members were asked to contact Chair Paradis if they wish to fill the role.

Ms. Baxter asked about the subcommittees proposed timeline. Mr. Ricker noted the process is currently
behind compared to past years and said that if the previous Friday morning schedule is followed,
meetings would be held on August 8, 15, and 22. A break would follow to allow backend work to be
completed, with a meeting in early September to review the full plan and a goal of holding the public
hearing at the first meeting in October. Chair Paradis reminded the board members to reach out if they
had interest in participating on the subcommittee.

Planning Board Page 4 of 5
Minutes of July 22, 2025



4. New Business
No other business was discussed.
5. Adjournment

A motion was made by Ms. Kidder, and seconded by Ms. Campbell, to adjourn the meeting. The motion
passed unanimously and the meeting was adjourned at 7:49pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Kelsie L. Clarke
Recording Secretary
Town of New London

Note: RSA 91-A:2, Il provides that “Minutes of all such meetings, including nonpublic sessions, shall include the names of members,
persons appearing before the public bodies, and a brief description of the subject matter discussed and final decisions.” A video of the
entire meeting may be available for viewing on the town website, NewLondon.NH.gov, if more than the brief description contained in
these meeting minutes is desired.

Planning Board Page 5 of 5
Minutes of July 22, 2025



